

# Senate Calendar

---

THURSDAY, APRIL 15, 2021

SENATE CONVENES AT: 1:00 P.M.

---

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page No.

### ACTION CALENDAR

#### NEW BUSINESS

##### Third Reading

**H. 154** An act relating to the failure of municipal officers to accept office..... 1077

### NOTICE CALENDAR

#### Second Reading

##### Favorable with Proposal of Amendment

**H. 88** An act relating to certification of agricultural use for purposes of the use value appraisal program  
Agriculture Report - Sen. Parent ..... 1077

### ORDERED TO LIE

**S. 100** An act relating to universal school breakfast and lunch for all public school students and to creating incentives for schools to purchase locally produced foods..... 1079

### CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS FOR NOTICE

**H.C.R. 42 - 44** (For text of Resolutions, see Addendum to House Calendar for April 15, 2021)..... 1079



---

---

**ORDERS OF THE DAY**

---

---

**ACTION CALENDAR**

**NEW BUSINESS**

**Third Reading**

**H. 154.**

An act relating to the failure of municipal officers to accept office.

**NOTICE CALENDAR**

**Second Reading**

**Favorable with Proposal of Amendment**

**H. 88.**

An act relating to certification of agricultural use for purposes of the use value appraisal program.

**Reported favorably with recommendation of proposal of amendment by Senator Parent for the Committee on Agriculture.**

The Committee recommends that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill by striking out Sec. 2, effective date, in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 2. 32 V.S.A. § 3752(5) is amended to read:

(5)(A) “Development” means, for the purposes of determining whether a land use change tax is to be assessed under section 3757 of this chapter, the construction of any building, road, or other structure, or any mining, excavation, or landfill activity.

(B) “Development” also means the subdivision of a parcel of land into two or more parcels, regardless of whether a change in use actually occurs, where one or more of the resulting parcels contains less than 25 acres each; but if subdivision is solely the result of a transfer to one or more of a spouse, ex-spouse in a divorce settlement, parent, grandparent, child, grandchild, niece, nephew, or sibling of the transferor, or to the surviving spouse of any of the foregoing, then “development” shall not apply to any portion of the newly created parcel or parcels that qualify for enrollment and for which, within 30 days following the transfer, each transferee or transferor applies for reenrollment in the use value appraisal program.

(C) “Development” also means the cutting of timber on property appraised under this chapter at use value in a manner contrary to a forest or conservation management plan as provided for in subsection 3755(b) of this title during the remaining term of the plan, or contrary to the minimum acceptable standards for forest management if the plan has expired; or a change in the parcel or use of the parcel in violation of the conservation management standards established by the Commissioner of Forests, Parks and Recreation.

(D) “Development” also means notification of the Director by the Secretary of Agriculture, Food and Markets under section 3756 of this title that the owner or operator of agricultural land or a farm building is violating the water quality requirements of 6 V.S.A. chapter 215 or is failing to comply with the terms of an order issued under 6 V.S.A. chapter 215, subchapter 10.

(E) The term “development” shall not include the construction, reconstruction, structural alteration, relocation, or enlargement of any building, road, or other structure for farming, logging, forestry, or conservation purposes, but shall include the subsequent commencement of a use of that building, road, or structure for other than farming, logging, or forestry purposes.

(F) The term “development” shall not include the location of any solar generation facility that is, in the aggregate, on 0.1 of an acre of land or less, provided that the underlying land qualifies under this chapter as agricultural land or open land that qualifies as managed forestland in accordance with standards established by the Commissioner of Forests, Parks and Recreation.

Sec. 3. 32 V.S.A. § 3756 is amended to read:

§ 3756. QUALIFICATION FOR USE VALUE APPRAISAL

(a) The owner of eligible agricultural land, farm buildings, or managed forestland shall be entitled to have eligible property appraised at its use value provided the owner shall have applied to the Director on or before September 1 of the previous tax year, on a form ~~approved by the Board~~ and provided by the Director. A farmer, whose application has been accepted on or before December 31 by the Director of the Division of Property Valuation and Review of the Department of Taxes for enrollment for the use value program for the current tax year, shall be entitled to have eligible property appraised at its use value, if ~~he or she~~ the farmer was prevented from applying on or before September 1 of the previous year due to the severe illness of the farmer.

\* \* \*

(g) The Director shall execute ~~such~~ and provide other forms and the ~~board~~ Board shall adopt ~~such~~ other procedures and regulations, as are needed to ~~assure~~ ensure a fair opportunity for owners to qualify under this subchapter and to ~~assure~~ ensure compliance with the provisions of this chapter.

\* \* \*

#### Sec. 4. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on July 1, 2021.

And that after passage the title of the bill be amended to read:

An act relating to the use value appraisal program.

(Committee vote: 5-0-0)

(For House amendments, see House Journal for March 9, 2021, pages 282-283.)

### **ORDERED TO LIE**

#### **S. 100.**

An act relating to universal school breakfast and lunch for all public school students and to creating incentives for schools to purchase locally produced foods.

### **CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS FOR NOTICE**

#### **Concurrent Resolutions For Notice Under Joint Rule 16**

The following joint concurrent resolutions have been introduced for approval by the Senate and House. They will be adopted by the Senate unless a Senator requests floor consideration before the end of the session of the next legislative day. Requests for floor consideration should be communicated to the Secretary's Office.

**H.C.R. 42 - 44** (For text of Resolutions, see Addendum to House Calendar for April 15, 2021)

### **CONFIRMATIONS**

The following appointments will be considered by the Senate, as a group, under suspension of the Rules, as moved by the President *pro tempore*, for confirmation together and without debate, by consent thereby given by the Senate. However, upon request of any senator, any appointment may be singled out and acted upon separately by the Senate, with consideration given to the report of the Committee to which the appointment was referred, and with full debate; and further, all appointments for the positions of Secretaries of Agencies, Commissioners of Departments, Judges, Magistrates, and

members of the Public Utility Commission shall be fully and separately acted upon.

Joseph Flynn of South Hero – Secretary, Agency of Transportation – By Sen. Mazza for the Committee on Transportation. (3/19/21)

Wanda L. Minoli of Montpelier – Commissioner, Department of Motor Vehicles – By Sen. Ingalls for the Committee on Transportation. (3/19/21)

Jennifer M. Fitch of Montpelier – Commissioner, Department of Buildings and General Services – By Sen. Benning for the Committee on Institutions. (3/26/21)

Michael Schirling of Burlington – Commissioner, Department of Public Safety – By Senator Ingalls for the Committee on Transportation. (3/26/21)

Sarah Squirrell of Waterbury Center – Commissioner, Department of Mental Health – Sen. Hooker for the Committee on Health and Welfare. (4/2/21)

Cory G. Gustafson of Montpelier – Commissioner, Department of Vermont Health Access – By Sen. Cummings for the Committee on Health and Welfare. (4/6/21)

Michael K. Smith of Westford – Secretary, Agency of Human Services – By Sen. Lyons for the Committee on Health and Welfare. (4/6/21)

Sean P. Brown of Washington – Commissioner, Department for Children and Families – By Sen. Hooker for the Committee on Health and Welfare. (4/7/21)

Dr. Jessica Holmes of Cornwall – Member, Green Mountain Care Board – Sen. Hardy for the Committee on Health and Welfare. (4/7/21)

Mark A. Levine, MD of Shelburne – Commissioner, Department of Health – By Sen. Hardy for the Committee on Health and Welfare. (4/7/21)

Susanne R. Young of Northfield – Secretary, Agency of Administration – By Sen. Collamore for the Committee on Government Operations. (4/13/21)

Mary E. Fastiggi of Burlington – Commissioner, Department of Human Resources -By Sen. Pollina for the Committee on Government Operations. (4/14/21)

Adam Greshin of Warren – Commissioner, Department of Finance and Management – By Sen. Clarkson for the Committee on Government Operations. (4/14/21)

John J. Quinn III of Berlin – Secretary, Agency of Digital Services – By Sen. Ram for the Committee on Government Operations. (4/14/21)

June Tierney of Randolph – Commissioner, Department of Public Service – By Sen. Cummings for the Committee on Finance. (4/14/21)

Michael Pieciak of Winooski – Commissioner, Department of Financial Regulation – By Sen. Sirotkin for the Committee on Finance. (4/15/21)

### **JFO NOTICE**

Grants and Positions that have been submitted to the Joint Fiscal Committee by the Administration, under 32 V.S.A. §5(b)(3):

**JFO #3043** - \$4,284,369 from the US Dept of Education to the VT Agency of Education for assistance to VT's approved and recognized non-profit independent schools to address educational disruptions caused by COVID-19. Funds will be managed by the VT Agency of Education. *[NOTE: Funds will be used with the GEER EANS program: Governor's Emergency Education Relief (GEER) Emergency Assistance to Non-public Schools (EANS). This program is replacing Equitable Services in ESSER II and III. Please see this overview of how the funds will be used by the AOE to support independent schools.]*

*[JFO received 4/5/2021]*

**JFO #3044** – One (1) limited service position to the VT Dept. of Disabilities, Aging and Independent Living to develop a Northeast Network of mental health counselors familiar with farmer related stressors. Total first year amount of \$146,766 from the U.S. Department of Agriculture. Position has been approved for 1 year and is expected to be approved for 2 additional years.

*[JFO received 4/5/2021]*

**JFO #3045** - 48 (forty-eight) limited-service positions to carry out the ongoing work for an effective public health response to COVID-19. *[NOTE: Positions to be funded through ongoing CDC grants #2254 (Immunization) and #2478 (Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity) previously approved in 2006 and 2010, respectively.]*

*[JFO received 4/13/2021]*

## FOR INFORMATION ONLY

### CROSSOVER DATES

The Joint Rules Committee established the following Crossover deadlines:

(1) All **Senate/House** bills must be reported out of the last committee of reference (including the Committees on Appropriations and Finance/Ways and Means, except as provided below in (2) and the exceptions listed below) on or before **Friday, March 12, 2021**, and filed with the Secretary/Clerk so they may be placed on the Calendar for Notice the next legislative day – Committee bills must be voted out of Committee by Friday March 12, 2021.

(2) All **Senate/House** bills referred pursuant to Senate Rule 31 or House Rule 35(a) to the Committees on Appropriations and Finance/Ways and Means must be reported out by the last of those committees on or before **Friday, March 19, 2021**, and filed with the Secretary/Clerk so they may be placed on the Calendar for Notice the next legislative day.

**Note:** The Senate will not act on bills that do not meet these crossover deadlines, without the consent of the Senate Rules Committee.

**Exceptions to the foregoing deadlines include the major money bills (the general Appropriations bill (“The Big Bill”), the Transportation Capital bill, the Capital Construction bill and the Fee/Revenue bills).**